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1.0   Summary of significant accounting policies

1.1   Basis of preparation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

(b) Basis of measurement

• 

• 
•   
•  

•  

•  

•  share based payment at fair value or an approximation of fair value allowed by the relevant standard.

•  insurance liabilities measured at present value of future cashflows

1.2   Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(i) New and amended standards adopted by the group

(a) Amendments to IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Presentation (effective 1 January 2014)

Offsetting -Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal 

enforceable right to set off the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Master netting 

agreements where the legal right of offset is only enforceable on the occurrence of some future event, such as default of the counterparty, does not to meet 

the offsetting requirements.

(b) Amendments to IAS 36 - Impairment of assets (effective 1 January 2014)

These amendments address the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs of 

disposal. These amendments address the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less 

costs of disposal to require disclosure of the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU when an impairment loss has been recognized or reversed; and to require 

detailed disclosure of how the fair value less costs of disposal has been measured when an impairment loss has been recognized or reversed. This Group did 

not reverse or recognize an impairment loss on its non-financial asset.

Below are the IFRSs and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commitee (IFRIC) interpretations that are effective for the first time for the financial 

year beginning on or after 1 January 2014 that are relevant to the group.

None of these standards were early adopted in the prior period by the Group as early adoption is not permitted by the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria 

(FRC).

The IASB has issued amendments to the application guidance in IAS 32, ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’, that clarify some of the requirements for 

offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities on the statement of financial position. 

The amendments do not change the current offsetting model in IAS 32, which requires an entity to offset a financial asset and financial liability in the 

statement of financial position only when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off and intends either to settle the asset and liability on a 

net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The amendments clarify that the right of set-off must be available today – that is, it is not 

contingent on a future event. It also must be legally enforceable for all counterparties in the normal course of business, as well as in the event of default, 

insolvency or bankruptcy.  The changes requires extensive disclosures focus on quantitative information about recognized financial instruments that are offset 

in the statement of financial position, as well as those recognized financial instruments that are subject to master netting or similar arrangements irrespective 

of whether they are offset.

derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.

non-derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
investment property is measured at fair value.

the liability for defined benefit obligations is recognised as the present value of the defined benefit obligation and related current service cost

non-current assets held for sale measured at fair value less costs to sell

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently 

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statement comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the statement of financial position, the consolidated 

statements of changes in equity, the consolidated cash flow statement and the notes.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Naira, which is the Group's presentation currency; except where indicated, financial information 

presented in Naira has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

These consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following:



(c) IFRIC 21 - Levies (effective 1 January 2014)

(d) Amendments to IFRS 7 on offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (effective 1 January 2014)

Impact of the adoption of IAS 32, 36  and IFRIC 21 

Amendments to IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Presentation (effective 1 January 2014 )

Amendments to IAS 36 - Impairment of assets (effective 1 January 2014)

(iii) New and amended standards and interpretations not yet adopted by the Group

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement (effective 1 January 2018)

The IASB has issued amendments to the application guidance in IAS 32, ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’, that clarify some of the requirements for 

offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities on the balance sheet. However, the clarified offsetting requirements for amounts presented in the statement 

of financial position continue to be different from Generally Accepted Accounting practices in the United States of America)

These amendments address the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs of 

disposal. These amendments address the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less 

costs of disposal, to require disclosure of the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU when an impairment loss has been recognised or reversed; and to require 

detailed disclosure of how the fair value less costs of disposal has been measured when an impairment loss has been recognised or reversed. 

As at 30 September 2014, a number of standards and interpretations, and amendments thereto, had been issued by the IASB which are not yet effective for 

these consolidated financial statements. Details are set out below. 

IFRS 9 (2009) introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 (2010) introduces additions relating to financial 

liabilities. The IASB currently has an active project to make limited amendments to the classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 and add new 

requirements to address the impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. 

The IFRS 9 (2009) requirements represents a significant change from the existing requirements in IAS 39 in respect of financial assets. The standard contains 

two primary measurement categories of financial assets: amortised cost and fair value. A financial asset would be measured at amortised cost if it is held 

within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the asset's contractual terms give rise on specific dates 

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All other financial assets would be measured at fair value. The 

standard eliminates the existing IAS 39 categories of held to maturity, available-for-sale and loans and receivables. For an investment in equity instrument 

which is not held for trading, the standard permits an irrevocable election, on initial recognition, on an individual share-by-share basis, to present all fair value 

changes from the investment in other comprehensive income. No amount recognized in other comprehensive income would ever be reclassified to profit or 

loss at a later date. However, dividend on such investments are recognized in the income statement, rather than other comprehensive income unless they 

clearly represent a partial recovery of the cost of the investments. Investments in equity instruments in respect of which an entity does not elect to present fair 

value changes in other comprehensive income would be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the income statement. The group is yet 

to assess IFRS 9’s full impact. 

IFRIC 21, ‘Levies’, sets out the accounting for an obligation to pay a levy that is not income tax.   The interpretation could result in recognition of a liability later 

than today, particularly in connection  with levies that are triggered by circumstances on a specific date. It addresses the accounting for a liability to pay a levy 

recognized in accordance with IAS 37, ‘Provisions’, and the liability to pay a levy whose timing and amount is certain. It excludes income taxes within the scope 

of IAS 12, ‘Income taxes’. The interpretation does not address whether the liability to pay a levy gives rise to an asset or an expense. Entities will need to apply 

other standards to determine the accounting for the expense. The Group is not subjected to levies that are not income taxes within the scope of IAS 12

Disclosures- Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (amendments to IFRS 7) introduces disclosures about the impact of right of offsets and related 

arrangements for financial instruments under a master netting or similar arrangements.  The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or 

after 1 January 2014 and interim periods within those annual periods. The amendments are applied restrospectively, the Group has offsetting arrangements in 

place as at March 2014. The application of the amendments had no material impact on the disclosures or the amount recognised in the consolidated financial 

statements. 

The following changes in accounting policies are expected to reflect in the Group's consolidated and separate condensed interim financial statements as at and 

for the period ending 30 September 2014.



Other IFRS that are relevant to the group include: 

Effective Date

1.3   Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

a) power over the investee;

b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns 

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group exercise control. Control is achieved when the Group can demonstrate it has:

The investor shall reassess whether it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of 

control listed. The existence and effect of potential voting rights are considered when assessing whether the group controls another entity.

IFRS 13, ‘Fair value 

measurement’

Annual periods beginning

on or after 1 July 2014

The IASB has amended the basis for conclusions of IFRS 13 to clarify that it did

not intend to remove the ability to measure short-term receivables and

payables at invoice amounts in such cases.

The amendment clarifies that the portfolio exception in IFRS 13, which

allows an entity to measure the fair value of a group of financial assets and

financial liabilities on a net basis, applies to all contracts (including non-financial contracts) within 

the scope of IAS 39 or IFRS 9.

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from 

contracts with customers’

Annual periods beginning 

on or after 1 January 2017

The Standard outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue 

arising from contracts with customers to improve

comparability within industries, across industries, and across capital markets. The revenue standard 

contains principles that an entity will apply to determine the

measurement of revenue and timing of when it is recognised. The underlying principle is that an 

entity will recognise revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers at an amount 

that the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and 

equipment’, and IAS 38, 

‘Intangible assets’

Annual periods beginning 

on or after 1 July 2014

The IASB has amended the basis for conclusions of IFRS 13 to clarify that it did

not intend to remove the ability to measure short-term receivables and

payables at invoice amounts in such cases.

IAS 24, ‘Related party 

disclosures’

Annual periods beginning

on or after 1 July 2014

The standard is amended to include, as a related party, an entity that provides key

management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the

reporting entity (‘the management entity’). The reporting entity is not required to

disclose the compensation paid by the management entity to the management

entity’s employees or directors, but it is required to disclose the amounts charged

to the reporting entity by the management entity for services provided.

IFRS 3, ‘Business 

combinations’

For business combinations

where the acquisition date 

is

on or after 1 July 2014.

The standard is amended to clarify that IFRS 3 does not apply to the accounting

for the formation of any joint arrangement under IFRS 11. The amendment also

clarifies that the scope exemption only applies in the financial statements of the

joint arrangement itself.

IFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’ Annual periods beginning

on or after 1 July 2014

The standard is amended to require disclosure of the judgements made by

management in aggregating operating segments. This includes a description of

the segments which have been aggregated and the economic indicators

which have been assessed in determining that the aggregated segments share

similar economic characteristics. The standard is further amended to

require a reconciliation of segment assets to the entity’s assets when segment assets are reported.

Amendments to IAS 19, 

‘Employee

benefits’ on defined benefit 

plans

Annual periods beginning

on or after 1 July 2014

This amendment clarifies the application of IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ (2011) –

referred to as ‘IAS 19R’, to plans that require employees or third parties to

contribute towards the cost of benefits. The amendment does not affect the

accounting for voluntary contributions. 

Amendment to IFRS 2, 

’Share based payment’

For share-based payment

transactions for which the 

grant date is on or after

1 July 2014.

The amendment clarifies the definition of a ‘vesting condition’ and separately

defines ‘performance condition’ and ‘service condition’.

IFRS Subject of amendment



a) 

b)
c)

d) potential voting rights

(ii) Business combinations

•

•

•

(iii)  Acquisitions from entities under common control

(vi) Loss of control

When share-based payment awards (replacement awards)  are required to be exchanged for awards held by the acquiree’s  employees (acquiree’s awards) 

and relate to past services , then all or a portion of the amount of the acquirer’s  replacement awards is included in measuring the consideration transferred in 

the business combination. This determination is based on the market-based value of the replacement awards compared with the market-based value of the 

acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the replacement awards relate to past and/or future service.

The Group elects on a transaction-by-transaction basis whether to measure non-controlling interest at its fair value, or at its proportionate share of the 

recognised amount of the identifiable net assets, at the acquisition date.

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholder that controls the group are accounted for as 

if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative year presented or, if later, at the date that common control was established; for 

this purpose comparatives are restated. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at the carrying amounts recognised previously in the Group 

controlling shareholder’s consolidated financial statements. The components of equity of the acquired entities are added to the same components within 

Group equity and any gain/loss arising is recognised directly in equity.

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity 

related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in the income statement. If the Group retains any interest in the 

previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-accounted 

investee or in accordance with the Group's accounting policy for financial instruments.

the recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-

existing equity interest in the acquiree; less

the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When this total is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in statement of comprehensive income, after a re-assessment to ensure 

correctness.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in in 

the income statement.

Transactions costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in connection with a 

business combination are expensed as incurred.

 Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, then it is not re-

measured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in the 

income statement.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

 Subsidiaries are measured at cost less impairment in the separate financial statement. 

The Group applies IFRS 3 Business Combinations (revised)  in accounting for business combinations. 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is the date on which control is transferred to the 

Group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the Group 

takes into consideration potential voting rights. 

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as the total of:

the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

The investor shall reassess whether it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of 

control listed. The existence and effect of potential voting rights are considered when assessing whether the group controls another entity.

 The group assesses existence of control where it does not have more than 50% of the voting power i.e when it holds less than a majority of the voting rights of 

an investee. An investor considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not it's voting rights are sufficient to give it power, including:

a contractual arrangement between the investor and other vote holders 

rights arising from other contractual arrangements
the investor’s voting rights (including voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings)



(iv) Disposal of subsidaries

(v) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

(vi) Associates

Investments in associates are measured at cost less impairment in the separate financial statement. 

(viii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

1.4   Segment reporting

1.5   Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it can earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues 

and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components, whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the Executive 

Committee (being the chief operating decision maker) to make decisions about resources allocated to each segment and assess its performance, and for which 

discrete financial information is available.

Items included in the financial statements of each of the group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 

entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Naira’, which is the group’s presentation currency.

The Group in the normal course of business sets up Structured Entiries (SEs) for the sole purpose of raising finance in foreign jurisdictions. The SEs raises 

finance in the currency of their jurisdictions and passes the proceeds to the group entity that set them up. All costs and interest on the borrowing are borne by 

the sponsoring group entity. These SEs are deemed to be extensions of the sponsoring entity, and hence, their functional currency is the same as that of the 

sponsoring entity.

Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of 

the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially 

recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit/loss and other comprehensive income of 

the investee after the date of acquisition. The group’s investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in 

other comprehensive income is reclassified to the income statement where appropriate.

The group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive 

income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the group’s share of 

losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, 

unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the 

group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the 

amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss) of associates in the income statement

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the group and its associate are recognised in the group’s financial 

statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of 

an impairment of the asset transferred.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from 

intercompany transactions that are recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure 

consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

When the group ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in 

carrying amount recognised in income statement. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained 

interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that 

entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other  

comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement.

The gain/loss arising from disposal of subsidiaries is included in the profit/loss of discontinued operations in the statement of comprehensive income.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions – that is, as transactions with the 

owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net 

assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity. 



(ii) Transactions and balances

(iii) Group companies

(a)

(b)

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

1.6   Operating income

(i) Interest income and expense

•   
•   

(ii) Fees and commission

(iii) Net gains/losses on financial instuments classified Held for Trading

Interest income and expense presented in the statement of comprehensive income include:

interest on financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost calculated on an effective interest rate basis.
interest on available-for-sale investment securities calculated on an effective interest basis

Fees and commission income and expenses that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or liability are included in the measurement of the 

effective interest rate.

Other fees and commission income, including account servicing fees, investment management and other fiduciary activity fees, sales commission, placement 

fees and syndication fees, are recognised as the related services are performed. When a loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, 

loan commitment fees are recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the 

cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the 

transactions); and

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the 

closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognised within "interest income" and "interest expense"  in the consolidated 

income statement using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or 

interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts 

through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. 

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments but not future 

credit losses.
The calculation of the effective interest rate includes contractual fees and points paid or received, transaction costs, and discounts or premiums that are an 

integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a 

financial asset or liability.

The Group in the normal course of business sets up Structured Entiries (SEs) for the sole purpose of raising finance in foreign jurisdictions. The SEs raises 

finance in the currency of their jurisdictions and passes the proceeds to the group entity that set them up. All costs and interest on the borrowing are borne by 

the sponsoring group entity. These SEs are deemed to be extensions of the sponsoring entity, and hence, their functional currency is the same as that of the 

sponsoring entity.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation 

where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end 

exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement. Changes in the fair value of 

monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the 

amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes in amortised cost are 

recognised in the income statement, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the income 

statement as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as available for sale, are 

included in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency 

different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:



(iv) Foreign exchange income

(v) Dividends

1.7   Lease payments

1.8   Income tax expense

(i) Current tax

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 

amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; 

deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the 

time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been 

enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred 

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary 

differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred 

income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the group and it is probable that the temporary difference will 

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when 

the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different 

taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Foreign exchange income includes foreign exchange gains on revaluation and unrealised foreign exchange gains on revaluation.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. Dividends are reflected as a component of other operating income.

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received 

are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance 

expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 

Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the lease when the lease adjustment is 

confirmed.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items 

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, 

respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the 

bank and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in 

which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax 

authorities.

Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realised and unrealised fair value changes and foreign 

exchange differences.



1.9   Financial assets and liabilities

The table below reconciles classification of financial instruments to the respective IAS 34/39 category.

Equity securities

Debt securities

Cash on hand and balances with banks

Restricted balances with central banks

Loans to individuals

Receivables
Listed

Listed

Listed
Unlisted

Listed

Unlisted

Demand deposits

Savings deposits

Term deposits

(a) Classification, recognition and measurement

 - Financial assets

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises two sub-categories: financial assets classified as held for trading and financial assets designated by the Group as at fair value through 

profit or loss upon initial recognition.

Financial instruments included in this category are recognised initially at fair value; transaction costs are taken directly to the consolidated income statement. 

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included directly in the consolidated income statement and are reported as Net gains on financial 

instruments classified as held for trading. Interest income and expense and dividend income and expenses on financial assets held for trading are included in 

‘Net interest income’ or ‘Dividend income’, respectively. The instruments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or the Group 

has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognising. 

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Retirement benefit 

obligations Liability for defined benefit and defined 

contribution

Other liabilities

The purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for in the Group's books at settlement date.

The Group allocates financial assets to the following IAS 39 categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-

maturity investments; and available-for-sale financial assets. Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition.

Category 

(as defined by IAS 39)

Class (as determined by the 

Group)

Sub classes

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit Derivatives

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Deposits from banks

Deposits from customers

Held to maturity
Investment securities - debt 

Pledged assets

Available for sale financial assets

Investment securities - debt 

securities
Investment securities - 

equity securities

Loans and receivables

Cash and balances with 

banks

Unrestricted balances with central banks

Money market placements and other 

cash equivalents

Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to 

customers
Loans to corporate entities and other 

organisations

Other assets

In accordance with IAS 39, all financial assets and liabilities (which include derviative financial insturments) have to be reocognised in the consolidated 

statement of financial position and measured in accordance with their assigned category. 

Financial assets

Category 

(as defined by IAS 39)

Class (as determined by the 

Group)
Sub classes

Financial assets at fair value through profit or 

loss
Non pledged trading assets



•   

•   

•   

(ii) Loans and receivables

(iii) Held-to-maturity

•   

•   

•   

(iv) Available-for-sale

Interest income is recognised in the income statement using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised in the income statement when the 

Group becomes entitled to the dividend. Foreign exchange gains or losses on available-for-sale debt security investments are recognised in the income 

statement

These are initially recognised at fair value including direct and incremental transaction costs and measured subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective 

interest method. Any sale or reclassification of a significant amount of held-to-maturity investments not close to their maturity would result in the 

reclassification of all held-to-maturity investments as available-for- sale, and prevent the Group from classifying investment securities as held-to-maturity for 

the current and the following two financial years. However, sales and reclassifications in any of the following circumstances would not trigger a reclassification:

Sales or reclassification that are so close to maturity that changes on the market rate of interest would not have a significant effect on the financial 

asset’s fair value.
Sales or reclassification after the Group has collected substantially all the asset’s original principal.

Sales or reclassification attributable to non-recurring isolated events beyond the Group’s control that could not have been reasonably anticipated.

Interest on held-to-maturity investments is included in the consolidated income statement and reported as ‘Interest income’. In the case of an impairment, the 

impairment loss is been reported as a deduction from the carrying value of the investment and recognised in the consolidated income statement as ‘net 

impairment loss on financial assets’. Held-to-maturity investments include treasury bills and bonds.

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative investments that are not designated as another category of financial assets. Unquoted equity securities 

whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost and subjected to impairment. All other available-for-sale investments are carried at fair value.

The asset or liability contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the contract.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and that the Group does 

not intend to sell immediately or in the near term. 

Finance lease receivables are reported within loans and receivables where the Group is the lessor in a lease agreement. Such lease agreement transfers 

substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee. The loans and receivables equal to the net investment in the lease is 

recognised and presented within loans and advances.

When the Group purchases a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an agreement to resell the asset (or a substantially similar asset) at a fixed price on 

a future date (“reverse repo or stock borrowing”), the arrangement is accounted for as a loan or advance, and the underlying asset is not recognised in the 

Group’s financial statements.

Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value – which is the cash consideration to originate or purchase the loan including any transaction costs – 

and measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Loans and receivables are reported in the consolidated statement of 

financial position as loans and advances to banks or customers or as investment securities. Interest on loans is included in the consolidated income statement 

and is reported as ‘Interest income’. In the case of an impairment, the impairment loss is reported as a deduction from the carrying value of the loan and 

recognised in the consolidated income statement under "net impairment loss on financial assets"

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Group has the positive intent and 

ability to hold to maturity, and which are not designated at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or available-for-sale.

The Group designates certain financial assets upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss (fair value option). This designation cannot 

subsequently be changed. According to IAS 39, the fair value option is only applied when the following conditions are met:

The assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis.

The designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise.



Availabe for sale instruments include investment seccurities. 

Other fair value changes are recognised directly in other comprehensive income until the investment is sold or impaired whereupon the cumulative gains and 

loses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are recognised to the income statement as a reclassification adjustment.

A non-derivative financial asset may be reclassified from the available-for-sale category to the loans and receivable category if it otherwise would have met the 

definition of loans and receivables and if the Group has the intention and ability to hold that financial asset for the foreseeable future or until maturity.



 - Financial liabilities

(v)  Financial liabilities at amortised cost

(vi) Financial liabilities at fair value

(b) De-recognition

 - Financial assets

(c ) Renegotiated loans

When assets are sold to a third party with a concurrent total rate of return swap on the transferred assets, the transaction is accounted for as a secured 

financing transaction similar to repurchase transactions as the Group retains all or substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of such assets.

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control 

over the asset, the group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to 

changes in the value of the transferred asset.

In certain transactions the Group retains the obligation to service the transferred financial asset for a fee. The transferred asset is derecognised if it meets the 

derecognition criteria. An asset or liability is recognised for the servicing contract, depending on whether the servicing fee is more than adequate (asset) or is 

less than adequate (liability) for performing the servicing.

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment or individually significant and whose terms have been renegotiated are no longer considered 

to be past due but are treated as new loans. In subsequent years, the asset is considered to be past due and disclosed only if renegotiated again.

The Group classifies debt instruments as financial liabilities or equity in accordance with the contractual terms of the instrument.

Deposits and debt securities issued are initially measured at fair value minus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their 

amortised cost using the effective interest method, except where the Group designates liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

On this statement of financial position, financial liabilities carried at amortised cost include deposit from banks, deposit from customers and interest bearing 

loans and borrowings.

The Group may enter into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risk, including foreign 

exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and foreign currency options.  Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 24 to 

the financial statements. 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each 

balance sheet date. A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is recognised as a 

financial liability. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, 

in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset 

or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months. 

Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Derivative assets and liabilities are only offset if the transactions are with the same counterparty, a legal right of offset exists and the parties intend to settle on 

a net basis.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in 

a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor 

retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. Any interest in transferred financial assets that 

is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability in the statement of financial position. On derecognition of a financial asset, the 

difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset transferred), and the sum of (i) the 

consideration received ( including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other 

comprehensive income is recognised in the income statement.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and 

rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised 

from the financial position. Transfers of assets with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for example, securities lending and repurchase 

transactions.

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan commitments, as measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit or 

loss. 

Financial liabilities that are not classified as at fair value through profit or loss are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest 

expense is included in 'Interest expense' in the Statement of comprehensive income. 

Deposits and debt securities issued are the Group’s sources of debt funding. When the Group sells a financial asset and simultaneously enters into a “repo” or 

“stock lending” agreement to repurchase the asset (or a similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date, the arrangement is accounted for as a deposit, and the 

underlying asset continues to be recognised in the Group’s financial statements as pledged assets.



 -  Financial liabilities

Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities

(d) Offsetting

(e ) Sale and repurchase agreements

(f) Measurement

(i) Amortised cost measurement

(ii) Fair value measurement

If a market for a financial instrument is not active, the Group establishes fair value using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s 

length transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to the current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the 

same, and discounted cash flow analysis. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs, relies as little as possible on estimates specific 

to the Group, incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price, and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for 

pricing financial instruments. Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably represent market expectations and measures of the risk-return factors inherent in the 

financial instrument. The Group calibrates valuation techniques and tests them for validity using prices from observable current market transactions in the 

same instrument or based on other available observable market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price – i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or 

received. However, in some cases, the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition may be different to its transaction price. If such fair value is 

evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument (without modification or repackaging) or based on a 

valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets, then the difference is recognised in the income statement on initial 

recognition of the instrument. In other cases the difference is not recognised in the income statement immediately but is recognised over the life of the 

instrument on an appropriate basis or when the instrument is redeemed, transferred or sold, or the fair value becomes observable.

Assets and long positions are measured at a bid price; liabilities and short positions are measured at an asking price. Where the Group has positions with 

offsetting risks, mid-market prices are used to measure the offsetting risk positions and a bid or asking price adjustment is applied only to the net open 

position as appropriate. Fair values reflect the credit risk of the instrument and include adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the Group entity and 

the counterparty where appropriate. Fair value estimates obtained from models are adjusted for any other factors, such as liquidity risk or model 

uncertainties, to the extent that the Group believes a third-party market participant would take them into account in pricing a transaction.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRSs, or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transactions such as 

in the Group’s trading activity.

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (‘repos’) remain on the statement of financial position; the counterparty liability is included in amounts due 

to other banks, deposits from banks, other deposits or deposits due to customers, as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse 

repos’) are recorded as money market placement. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of the 

agreements using the effective interest method.

Securities lent to counterparties are also retained in the financial statements. Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements, unless these 

are sold to third parties, in which case the purchase and sale are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal 

repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the 

maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on 

the measurement date.

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active 

if quoted prices are readily available and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal 

enforceable right to set off the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.



(g) Identification and measurement of impairment

Assets and long positions are measured at a bid price; liabilities and short positions are measured at an asking price. Where the Group has positions with 

offsetting risks, mid-market prices are used to measure the offsetting risk positions and a bid or asking price adjustment is applied only to the net open 

position as appropriate. Fair values reflect the credit risk of the instrument and include adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the Group entity and 

the counterparty where appropriate. Fair value estimates obtained from models are adjusted for any other factors, such as liquidity risk or model 

uncertainties, to the extent that the Group believes a third-party market participant would take them into account in pricing a transaction.

At each reporting date the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. 

Financial assets are impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss 

event has an impact on the future cash flows on the asset that can be estimated reliably. 

Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the obligor, default or 

delinquency by a borrower resulting in a breach of contract, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not otherwise 

consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable data relating to 

a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in 

the group. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below cost is objective evidence of impairment.



(i) Loans and receiveables

(ii) Available for sale securities

(g) Cash and balances with banks

(h) Repossessed collateral

(i) Derivative financial instruments

Repossessed collateral are equities, investment properties or other investments repossesed from a customer and used to settle his outstanding obligation. 

Such investments are classified in accordance with the intention of the Group in the asset class which they belong and are also seperately disclosed in the 

financial statement.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. 

Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets (for example, for exchange-traded options), including recent market transactions, and 

valuation techniques (for example for swaps and currency transactions), including discounted cash flow models and options pricing models, as appropriate. All 

derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The Group mitigates the credit risk of derivatives by holding collateral in the form of cash.

In assessing collective impairment the Group uses statistical modelling of historical trends of the probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of 

loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be 

greater or less than suggested by historical modelling. Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against 

actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial assets and the present 

value of estimated cash flows discounted at the assets’ original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in the income statement and reflected in an 

allowance account against loans and advances. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a 

subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale investment securities are recognised by transferring the cumulative loss that has been recognised in other 

comprehensive income to the income statement as a reclassification adjustment. 

For debt securities, the group uses the criteria referred to in (i) above to assess impairment.If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, 

the cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset 

previously recognised in profit or loss – is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement.  For equity, a prolonged decline in the fair value of the 

security below its cost is also evidence that the asset is impaired. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity instruments 

are not reversed through the consolidated income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt security increases 

and the increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, then the impairment loss is reversed through the 

income statement; otherwise, any increase in fair value is recognised through OCI. Any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale 

equity security is always recognised in OCI. 

The Group writes off previously impaired  loans and advances (and investment securities) when they are determined not to be recoverable. The Group writes 

off loans or investment debt securities that are impaired (either partially or in full and any related allowance for impairment losses) when the Group credit 

team determines that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Cash and balances with banks include notes and coins on hand, balances held with central banks and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of 

less than three months, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in the management of its short-term 

commitments.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, unrestricted balances with foreign and central banks, money 

market placements and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

The Group considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held-to-maturity investments at both a specific and collective level. All individually 

significant loans and advances and held-to maturity investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant loans and advances 

and held-to maturity investments found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet 

identified. Loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by 

grouping together loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities (held at amortised cost) with similar characteristics.



(j) Reclassification of financial assets

k) Pledged assets

1.10 Trading properties

1.11 Investment properties

1.12 Property and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

An investment property is an investment in land or buildings held primarily for generating income or capital appreciation and not occupied substantially for use 

in the operations of the Group. An occupation of more than 15% of the property is considered substantial. Investment properties is measured initially at cost 

including transaction cost and subsequently carried in the statement of financial position at their market value and revalued yearly on a systematic basis. 

Investment properties are not subject to periodic charge for depreciation. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are 

included in the consolidated income statement in the period which it arises as: "Fair value gain on investment property"

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the 

item) is recognised in income statement inside operating income. 

When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as property and equipment, its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for 

subsequent accounting. 

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are 

directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. 

Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets (for example, for exchange-traded options), including recent market transactions, and 

valuation techniques (for example for swaps and currency transactions), including discounted cash flow models and options pricing models, as appropriate. All 

derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The Group mitigates the credit risk of derivatives by holding collateral in the form of cash.

The Bank may choose to reclassify a non-derivative financial asset held for trading out of the held-for-trading category if the financial asset is no longer held for 

the purpose of selling it in the near-term. Financial assets other than loans and receivables are permitted to be reclassified out of the held for trading category 

only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near-term. In addition, the Bank may choose to 

reclassify financial assets that would meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading or available-for-sale categories if the Bank has the 

intention and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair 

value gains or losses recorded before reclassification date are subsequently made.  Effective interest rates for financial assets reclassified to loans and 

receivables and held-to-maturity categories are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases in estimates of cash flows adjust effective interest 

rates prospectively.

Financial assets transferred to external parties that do not qualify for de-recognition are reclassified in the statement of financial position from financial assets 

held for trading or investment securities to assets pledged as collateral, if the transferee has received the right to sell or re-pledge them in the event of default 

from agreed terms. 

Initial recognition of assets pledged as collateral is at fair value, whilst subsequent measurement is based on the classification of the financial asset. Assets 

pledged as collateral are either designated as held for trading,

available for sale or held to maturity. Where the assets pledged as collateral are designated as held for

trading, subsequent measurement is at fair value through profit and loss, whilst assets pledged as collateral

designated as available for sale are measured at fair-value through equity. Assets pledged as collateral

designated as held to maturity are measured at amortized cost.

Traded properties are inventory of land and building held by the group for the trading purposes. These properties are treated as inventory and carried at the 

lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of each item of property is as determined under the policy for Property and equipment. Net realisable value is 

the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

The gains and losses arising from sale of traded properties are reported as part of “Other operating income”. Write-downs in the carrying amount of traded 

properties are also recognised in “Operating expenses".



(ii) Subsequent costs

(iii) Depreciation

Over the shorter of the useful life of the item or lease term

Over the shorter of the useful life of the item or lease term
50 - 60 years

3 - 4.5 years

3 - 6 years

4 years

Buildings

Computer hardware

Furniture and fittings

Motor vehicles

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future 

economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day repairs and maintenance 

of property and equipment are recognised in Income statement as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis to write down the cost of items of property and equipment, to their residual values 

over the estimated useful lives. Leased assets under finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

Depreciation begins when an asset is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is derecognised or classified as held for sale in 

accordance with IFRS 5. A non-current asset or disposal group is not depreciated while it is classified as held for sale.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods of significant items of property and equipment are as follows:

Leasehold Land and Building

Leasehold improvements

When significant parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of 

property and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of 

property and equipment, and are recognised net within other income in the Income statement



(iv) De-recognition

1.13 Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill

(ii) Software

1.14   Leases

A group company is the lessee

(i) Operating lease

(ii) Finance lease

Amortisation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the software, from the date that it is available for 

use since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Software has a finite useful life, 

the estimated useful life of software is between three and five years. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-

end and adjusted if appropriate.

Leases are accounted for in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. They are divided into finance leases and operating leases.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by another party, the lessor, are classified as operating leases. 

Payments, including prepayments, made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to operating expenses in the 

income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease and used as investment property.

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the 

lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is 

allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, 

net of finance charges, are included in deposits from banks or deposits from customers depending on the counter party. The interest element of the finance 

cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for 

each period. The investment properties acquired under finance leases are measured subsequently at their fair value. 

An item of property and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss 

arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in 

income statement in the year the asset is derecognised.

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less 

accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill has an indefinite useful life and it is tested annually for impairment.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-

generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose identified in 

accordance with IFRS 8. 

Goodwill has an indefinite useful life and is tested annually as well as whenever a trigger event has been observed for impairment by comparing the present 

value of the expected future cash flows from a cash generating unit with the carrying value of its net assets, including attributable goodwill and carried at cost 

less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount 

of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Software acquired by the Group is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Expenditure on internally developed 

software is recognised as an asset when the Group is able to demonstrate its intention and ability to complete the development and use the software in a 

manner that will generate future economic benefits, and can reliably measure the costs to complete the development. The capitalised costs of internally 

developed software include all costs directly attributable to developing the software, and are amortised over its useful life. Internally developed software is 

stated at capitalised cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it 

relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each date of the statement of financial position. Assets are veviewed 

for impairment whenever events or changed in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written 

down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 

higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 

Capital work in progress is not depreciated. Upon completion it is transferred to the relevant asset category. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual 

values are reassessed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.



A group company is the lessor

1.15  Impairment of non-financial assets

1.16   Discontinued operations

1.17  Provisions

(i) Restructuring

1.18  Financial guarantees

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale or distribution and subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are recognised in the income 

statement. Gains are not recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment loss.

Once classified as held for sale or distribution, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortised or depreciated, and any equity-

accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable 

that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-

tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the 

provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expenses. 

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced 

or has been announced publicly. Future operating costs are not provided for.

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor 

fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value, and 

the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the financial guarantee. The guarantee liability is subsequently carried at the higher of this amortised amount 

and the present value of any expected payment (when a payment under the guarantee has become probable). Financial guarantees are included within other 

liabilities.

The recoverable amount of goodwill is estimated at each reporting date. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-

generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash 

inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit" or CGU). Subject to an 

operating segment ceiling test, for the purposes of goodwil impairment testing, CGUs to which goodwill has been allcated are aggregated so that the level at 

which impairment is tested reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business 

combination is allocated to the groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each 

reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates 

used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 

amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

The Group presents discontinued operations in a separate line in the consolidated income statement if an entity or a component of an entity has been 

disposed of or is classified as held for sale and:                                                       

(a) Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations;

(b) Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; or

(c) Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale (for example, certain private equity investments).

Net profit from discontinued operations includes the net total of operating profit and loss before tax from operations, including net gain or loss on sale before 

tax or measurement to fair value less costs to sell and discontinued operations tax expense. A component of an entity comprises operations and cash flows 

that can be clearly distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting purposes, from the rest of the Group´s operations and cash flows. If an entity or a 

component of an entity is classified as a discontinued operation, the Group restates prior periods in the consolidated income statement.

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale or distribution rather than 

through continuing use, are classified as held for sale or distribution. Immediately before classification as held for sale or distribution, the assets, or 

components of a disposal group, are re-measured in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies. Thereafter generally the assets, or disposal group, are 

measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then 

to the remaining assets and liabilities on pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit 

assets, investment property or biological assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies. 

When assets are held subject to a finance lease, the present value of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. The difference between the gross 

receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease using the 

net investment method (before tax), which reflects a constant periodic rate of return. 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets other than goodwill and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 

whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible 

assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time.



1.19  Employee benefits

(i)  Defined contribution plans

(ii) Termination benefits

(v) Long-term Incentive Plan

(iii) Short-term employee benefits

(iv)  Share-based payment remuneration scheme

1.20 Insurance contracts and investment contracts

The Bank operated a cash-settled share based compensation plan (i.e. share appreciation rights - SARs) for its management personnel . The management 

personnel are entitled to the share appreciation rights at a pre-determined price after spending five years in the Bank. 

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share appreciation rights, which are settled in cash, is recognized as an expense, with a 

corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period in which the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is re-measured at each 

reporting date and at settlement date. Any changes in the fair value of the liability are recognized as personnel expense in the income statement. Liability 

under this scheme was settled in 2012.

During the period, the cash settled share based payment scheme was replaced by a new plan called Restricted Share Performance Plan (RSPP). Under the 

RSPP, shares of the Bank are awarded to employees based on their performance at no cost to them and the shares will have a vesting period of 3 years from 

date of award. 

This new plan will be accounted for as an equity-settled transaction, where the Bank will recognize a cost and a corresponding increase in equity. The cost is 

recognized as an expense unless it qualifies for recognition as an asset. Initial estimates of the number of equity settled instruments that are expected to vest 

are adjusted to current estimates and ultimately to the actual number of equity settled instruments that vest unless differences are due to market conditions.

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk, financial risk or both.

The Bank operates a funded, defined contribution pension scheme for employees. Employees and the Bank contribute 7.5% of each of the qualifying staff 

salary in line with the provisions of the Pension Reforms Act 2004.

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts 

voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the group can 

no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37 and involves the 

payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the 

number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their 

present value.

The Bank has a non-contributory, un-funded lump sum defined benefit plan for top executive management of the Bank from General Manager and above 

based on the number of years spent in these positions.

Depending on their grade, executive staff of the Bank upon retirement are  entitled to certain benefits based on their length of stay on that grade. The Bank's 

net obligation in respect of the long term incentive scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefits that eligible employees have earned in 

return for service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The rate used to discount the post employment 

benefit obligation is determined by reference to the yield on Nigerian Government Bonds, that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Bank's 

obligations.

The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of 

the increased benefit relating to past service by employees is recognized in the income statement on a straight line basis over the average period until the 

benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognized immediately in the income statement. The Bank 

recognized all actuarial gains or losses and all expenses arising from defined benefit plan immediately in the income statement.   However during the year, IAS 

19 became effective and all actuarial gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income during the period under review.

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive 

obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor 

fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value, and 

the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the financial guarantee. The guarantee liability is subsequently carried at the higher of this amortised amount 

and the present value of any expected payment (when a payment under the guarantee has become probable). Financial guarantees are included within other 

liabilities.

A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a seperate entity and will have no legal or 

constructive obliagtion to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income 

statement when they are due in respect of service rendered before the end of the reporting period. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the 

extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after 

the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the service are discounted to their present value at the reporting date.



(i) Insurance contracts

Individual Life

Group Life

Outstanding claims provision

(ii) Insurance contracts with Discretionary Participation Features

(iii) Liability adequacy test

(iv) Reinsurance

1.21   Share capital and reserves

(i) Share issue costs

(ii) Dividend on the Bank’s ordinary shares

Liability adequacy tests are performed at each balance sheet date to ensure the adequacy of contract liabilities net of Deferred acquisition cost. Current best 

estimates of future contractual cash flows, claims handling and administration costs, and investment returns from the assets backing the liabilities are taken 

into account in the tests. Any deficiency is immediately recognised in the income statement.

Short- and long-term insurance business is ceded to reinsurers under contracts to transfer part or all of one or more of the following risks: mortality, 

investment and expenses. All such contracts are dealt with as insurance contracts. The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts 

are recognised as reinsurance assets. The Group assesses reinsurance assets at each balance sheet date. If there is objective evidence of impairment, the 

carrying amount of the reinsurance asset is reduced accordingly, resulting in a charge to the income statement.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the initial measurement of the equity instruments.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period when approved by the Bank’s shareholders. Dividends for the year that are declared after 

the end of the reporting period are dealt with in the subsequent events note.

The Group had, prior to the adoption of IFRS 4, valued insurance liabilities using certain actuarial techniques as described below. The Group has continued to 

value insurance liabilities in accordance with these.

Insurance contracts are classified into three broad categories, depending on the duration of the risk and the type of risk insured, namely Individual Life, Group 

Life and General insurance.

These contracts insure mainly against death. For the published accounts, the contracts are valued based on a gross premium valuation taking into account the 

present value of expected future premium, claim and associated expense cash flows.

Any resultant negative policy holder liabilities, measured on an individual policy level, are set to zero (“zeroised”) so as not to recognise profits prematurely.

Where the same policy includes both insurance and investment components and where the policy is classified as insurance, the insurance and investment 

benefits are valued separately.

These contracts insure against death on a group basis. These contracts are short term in nature and are typically renewed annually. For these contracts, gross 

premiums are recognised as revenue when due.

A full provision is made for the estimated cost of all claims notified but not settled at the reporting date, using the best information available at that time. 

Provision is also made for the cost of claims incurred but not reported ("IBNR") until after the reporting date.

Similarly, provisions are made for “unallocated claims expenses” being the estimated administrative expenses that will be incurred after the reporting date in 

settling all claims outstanding as at the date, including IBNR. Differences between the provision for outstanding claims at a reporting date and the subsequent 

settlement are included in the Revenue Account of the following year.

The Group issues single premium contracts that provide primarily savings benefits to policy holders but also transfer insurance risk. The investment return 

credited to the policy holders is at the Group’s discretion, subject to fair oversight and a minimum guaranteed. These contracts are valued on a retrospective 

basis.

In terms of IFRS 4, insurance liabilities are measured under existing local practice at the date of adoption of IFRS 4.



(iii) Treasury shares

(iv) Earnings per share

Where the Bank or any member of the Group purchases the Bank’s share capital, the consideration paid is deducted from the shareholders’ equity as treasury 

shares until they are cancelled or disposed. Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received is included in shareholders’ 

equity.

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calcuated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to 

ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting 

the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted avergae number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential 

ordinary shares.



Consolidated interim statement of comprehensive income

For the Nine months period ended 30 September, 

2014 Group Group

9 Months 9 Months

In thousands of Naira  Notes Ended Ended

September September

2014 2013

Gross Earnings 181,798,097                155,026,495               

Continuing operations

Interest Income 1 131,724,494                 109,911,221                

Interest Expense 2 (55,779,040)                  (50,283,100)                 

Net Interest Income 75,945,454                   59,628,121                  

Fee and commisison income 3 24,322,308                   21,371,916                  

Fee and commisison expense (28,806)                         

Net fee and commission income 24,293,502                   21,371,916                  

Net trading income 4 13,097,146                   7,733,138                    

other operating income 5 12,243,039                   12,940,209                  

Fair value gain on Investment property -                                 2,470,116                    

25,340,186                   23,143,463                  

Operating income before impairment gain/(loss) 125,579,142                104,143,500               

Net impairment gain/ (loss) on financial assets 6 (6,959,090)                    8,679,376                    

Operating income after impairment gain/(loss) 118,620,052                112,822,875               

Personnel expenses 7 (21,734,390)                  (23,596,456)                 

Depreciation and amortization (6,579,381)                    (8,190,669)                   

Other operating expenses 8 (48,561,434)                  (46,549,011)                 

Total expenses (76,875,204)                 (78,336,137)                

Share of profit of equity accounted investee 9 411,109                        599,896                       

Profit before income tax 42,155,957                   35,086,634                  

Income tax expense (6,323,394)                    (7,368,193)                   

Profit for the period from continuing operations 35,832,563                   27,718,441                  

Discontinued operations
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (486,827)                       (121,444)                      

Profit for the period 35,345,737                   27,596,997                  



Profit attributable to :

Equity holders of the parent entity 34,925,088                   27,624,707                  

Non controlling interest 420,649                        (27,710)                        

35,345,737                   27,596,997                  

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (1,522,730)                    (3,701,016)                   

Net change in fair value of available for sale financial assets 357,333                        768,304                       

Share of OCI of equity accounted investee (96)                                 6,680                            

Other comprehensive (loss)/gain for the year, net of tax (1,165,493)                    (2,926,032)                   

Total comprehensive income for the period 34,180,244                   24,670,965                  

Basic EPS (kobo) 154                                121                               

Diluted EPS (kobo) 154                                121                               



Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 30 September, 2014

Group Group

September December

In thousands of Naira Notes 2014 2013

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 10 413,937,003      439,459,541      

Non pledged trading assets 11 22,762,827        3,877,969           

Pledged assets 12 78,648,624        63,409,851        

Derivative financial instruments 2,520,240           102,123              

Loans and Advances to banks 23,666,731        24,579,875        

Loans and advances to customers 13 1,056,129,601   786,169,703      

Investments in equity accounted investee 14 4,034,338           3,623,325           

Investment securities 15 278,257,529      353,811,348      

Investment properties 16 -                       23,974,789        

Property and equipment 17 68,087,316        67,243,305        

Intangible assets 18 4,212,138           3,659,071           

Deferred tax assets 10,931,226        10,687,635        

Other assets 19 88,754,958        52,019,723        

Assets classified as held for sale 22,688,483        2,847,741           

Total assets 2,074,631,015  1,835,466,000  

Liabilities

Due to other banks 20 115,766,604      72,147,955        

Deposits from customers 21 1,479,020,215   1,331,418,659   

Derivative financial instruments -                       32,955                

Debt securities issued 22 123,164,293      55,828,248        

Retirement benefit obligations 23 1,215,535           1,933,021           

Current tax liabilities 24 9,292,603           6,899,558           

Other liabilities 25 28,021,616        56,847,216        

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 26 52,823,916        64,338,982        

Deferred tax liabilities 118,344              37,861                

Liabilities classified as held for sale -                       1,499,495           

Total liabilities 1,809,423,126  1,590,983,950  

Equity

Share capital and share premium 27 172,477,671      172,477,671      

Retained earnings 28 42,759,286        22,232,375        

Other components of equity 29 46,458,765        48,003,894        

Total equity attributable to owners of the Bank 261,695,722      242,713,940      

Non controlling interest 30 3,512,167           1,768,110           

Total equity 265,207,889      244,482,050      

Total liabilities and equity 2,074,631,015  1,835,466,000  



Consolidated Condensed Interim Statement of Changes in Equity

For the period ended 30 September 2014

In thousands of Naira Foreign

Group Regulatory Other Share currency Non  

Share Share risk regulatory Scheme Treasury Capital Fair value Contingency translation Retained Controlling Total

capital premium reserve reserves reserve Shares Reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interest Equity

Balance at 1 January 2014 11,441,460       161,036,211          13,074,749            30,365,408          112,783            (460,580)                  3,489,081         6,237,939          -                            (4,815,485)             22,232,375              242,713,941     1,768,110             244,482,051         

Total comprehensive income for the period:

Profit for the period -                   -                       -                     -                   -                         -                   -                   -                         -                        34,925,088            34,925,088           420,649              35,345,737                

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Unrealised foreign currency translation difference -                   -                       -                       -                     -                   -                         -                   -                   -                         (1,619,917)           -                         (1,619,917)            -                      (1,619,917)                 

Net changes in fair value of AFS financial instruments -                   -                       -                       -                     -                   174,801                -                   357,333           -                         97,187                 -                         629,321                -                      629,321                     

Fair value changes on AFS financial instruments from associates -                   -                       -                       -                     -                   -                         -                   (96)                   -                         -                         (96)                         -                      (96)                              

 Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) -                     -                          -                          -                        -                     174,801                   -                     357,237             -                            (1,522,730)             -                            (990,692)                  -                         (990,692)                       

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) -                     -                          -                          -                        -                     174,801                   -                     357,237             -                            (1,522,730)             34,925,088              33,934,396             420,649                 34,355,045                   

Transactions with equity holders, recorded directly in equity:

Scheme shares -                   -                       -                       -                     -                   (526,676)               -                   -                   -                         -                        -                         (526,676)               -                      (526,676)                    

Deemed disposal of subsidiary -                   -                       -                       -                     -                   -                         -                   -                   -                         -                        (652,668)                (652,668)               652,668              -                              

Transfer from disposed subsidiaries -                   -                       -                       (27,762)              -                   -                         -                   -                   -                         -                        27,762                   -                         670,740              670,740                     

Dividend paid to equity holders -                   -                       -                       -                     -                   -                         -                   -                   -                         -                        (13,773,270)          (13,773,270)         -                      (13,773,270)              

Total contributions by and distributions to equity holders -                  -                       -                       (27,762)              -                  (526,676)               -                  -                   -                         -                       (14,398,177)          (14,952,615)         1,323,408           (13,629,207)              

Balance at 30 September  2014 11,441,460       161,036,211          13,074,749            30,337,646          112,783            (812,455)                  3,489,081         6,595,176          -                            (6,338,215)             42,759,286              261,695,722           3,512,167             265,207,889                 

Consolidated Condensed Interim Statement of Changes in Equity -                       

For the period ended 30 September 2013

In thousands of Naira Foreign

Group Regulatory Other Share currency Non-

Share Share risk regulatory Scheme Treasury Capital Fair value Contingency translation Retained controlling Total

capital premium reserve reserves reserve Shares Reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interest Equity

Balance at 1 January 2013 11,441,460       165,186,795          6,961,919              26,080,715          -                     -                           3,489,080         (136,772)            650,437                    1,452,962               15,365,821              230,492,417           8,099,594             238,592,011                 

-                   

Total comprehensive income for the period: -                   -                       -                       -                   -                   -                         -                        27,624,707            27,624,707           (27,710)               27,596,996                

-                         -                              

Other comprehensive income, net of tax -                   -                         -                              

Foreign currency translation difference -                   -                       -                       -                     -                   -                   -                   -                         (3,701,016)           -                         (3,701,016)            (37,010)               (3,738,026)                 

Net changes in fair value of AFS financial instruments -                   -                       -                       -                     -                   -                   768,304           -                         -                        -                         768,304                768,304                     

 Total other comprehensive (loss)/income -                     -                          -                          -                        -                     -                           -                     768,304             -                            (3,701,016)             -                            (2,932,712)              (37,010)                 (2,969,722)                    

Total comprehensive (loss)/income -                     -                          -                          -                        -                     -                           -                     768,304             -                            (3,701,016)             27,624,707              24,691,995             (64,720)                 24,627,274                   

-                   

Transactions with equity holders, recorded directly in equity:

Transfers for the period -                   -                       5,051,424            3,274,080          -                   -                   -                   173,366                 -                        (8,498,870)             -                         -                      -                              

Scheme shares -                       -                     -                   (367,280)               -                   -                   -                         -                        -                         (367,280)               (367,280)                    

Transfer from disposed subsidiaries -                   -                       (1,988,075)          286,838             -                   -                   -                   -                         1,701,237              -                         -                      -                              

Decrease in non-controlling interest -                         -                         (2,600,071)         (2,600,071)                 

Loss on sale of subsidiary (2,424,341)             (2,424,341)            (4,136,663)         (6,561,004)                 

Distribution to equity holders (6,613,214)          (823,803)                (7,437,017)            -                      (7,437,017)                 

Dividend paid to equity holders -                   -                       -                       -                     -                   -                   -                         -                        (13,729,751)          (13,729,751)         -                      (13,729,751)              

Total contributions by and distributions to equity holders -                     -                          (1,434,294)             875,554               (400,669)                  -                     -                      454,516                    -                          (22,951,725)             (23,958,389)            (6,736,734)            (30,695,123)                  

Balance at 30 September  2013 11,441,460       165,186,795          5,527,625              26,956,269          -                     (400,669)                  3,489,080         631,532             1,104,953                (2,248,054)             20,038,802              231,226,023           1,298,140             232,524,163                 



Consolidated interim statement of cash flows

For the Nine months period ended 30 September, 2014

in thousands of naira

Group Group

September September

2014 2013

Cash flow from Operating activities

Profit After Tax 35,345,737                            27,596,996                              

Adjustments for:

Income tax expense 6,323,394                               7,368,193                                

Depreciation and amortization 6,579,381                               8,190,669                                

Impairment reversal/ charge on financial assets 6,959,090                               (8,679,376)                               

Gain on disposal of property and equipments (928,194)                                 (1,548,166)                               

Fair value gain on investment property -                                           (2,470,116)                               

Contributions to defined benefit plans -                                           1,557,006                                

Share of profit of equity accounted investee (411,109)                                 (599,896)                                   

Operating lease expense 1,588,995                               1,422,524                                

Rental income (186,080)                                 (338,191)                                   

Loss on sale of investment securities -                                           406,975                                    

Dividends received (3,765,987)                             (2,862,041)                               

Gain on disposal of equity investment -                                           (68,626)                                     

Gain on disposal of investment properties (344,000)                                 -                                             

Net Cash flow before changes in operating assets 51,161,226                            29,975,953                              

Change in Non-Pledged Trading Assets (18,884,858)                           27,272,631                              

Change in Pledged assets (15,238,773)                           16,429,856                              

Changes in loans to banks 913,144                                  912,688                                    

Change in loans and advances to customers (275,498,068)                         (166,101,116)                          

Change in other assets (41,527,636)                           (36,582,814)                             

Change in deposits from banks 43,618,649                            (35,015,972)                             

Change in deposits from customers 147,601,556                          24,029,455                              

Change in Other laibilities (30,244,612)                           (24,745,039)                             

Changes in interest bearing loans and borrowings (11,515,066)                           (8,230,680)                               

Change in derivative financial instrument-assets 2,418,117                               30,949                                      

Change in derivative financial instrument-liabilities -                                           (35,515)                                     

Retirement benefit obligations fulfilled -                                           (1,000,000)                               

(147,196,322)                         (173,059,606)                          

Income tax paid (7,281,679)                             (6,088,953)                               

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (154,478,001)                         (179,148,559)                          

Cash flows from Investing activities:

Net sale/(purchase) of investment securities 75,553,819                            66,315,502                              

Dividend income received 3,765,987                               2,958,083                                

Net disposal/(acquisition) of property and equipment (2,929,778)                             (2,735,488)                               

Acquisition of intangible assets (553,067)                                 (2,212,671)                               

Acquisition of investment properties -                                           (5,151,455)                               

Proceeds from the sale of investment properties 1,550,000                               395,894                                    

Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from investing activities 77,386,961                            59,569,866                              

Cash flows from financing activities:

Dividend paid during the period (13,773,270)                           (13,729,751)                             

Proceeds from borrowings 64,800,000                            8,692,453                                

Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from financing activities 51,026,730                            (5,037,298)                               

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (26,064,310)                           (124,615,991)                          

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 439,459,541                          296,184,966                            

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 541,773                                  (3,701,016)                               

Cash and cash equivalent, end of period 413,937,003                          167,867,960                            



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 September, 2014

In thousands of Naira

Group Group

 9 Months Ended  9 Months Ended 

September September

2014 2013

1 Interest income

Cash and cash equivalents 2,677,766                 2,786,215                 

Loans and advances to banks and customers 98,975,220               70,144,401               

Investment securities 30,071,508               36,980,605               

131,724,494            109,911,221             

2 Interest expense Group Group

 9 Months Ended  9 Months Ended 

September September

2014 2013

Deposit from banks 2,352,252                 4,063,012                 

Deposit from customers 48,192,393               42,313,352               

Securities dealing 4,628                         412,131                     

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 3,633,369                 3,460,626                 

Other borrowed funds 1,596,399                 33,980                       

55,779,040              50,283,100               

3 Fee and commission income Group Group

 9 Months Ended  9 Months Ended 

September September

2014 2013

Credit related fees and commissions 9,873,064                 4,454,946                 

Commission on turnover and handling commission 3,274,474                 4,256,688                 

Other fees and commissions 11,174,771               12,660,282               

24,322,308              21,371,916               

4  Net trading income Group Group

 9 Months Ended  9 Months Ended 

September September

2014 2013

Fixed income securities 455,746                    1,435,655                 

Foreign exchange 12,641,401               6,297,483                 

Net trading income 13,097,146              7,733,138                 



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 September, 2014

In thousands of Naira

5 Other operating income Group Group

 9 Months Ended  9 Months Ended 

September September

2014 2013

Dividends on available for sale equity securities 3,765,987                 2,862,041                 

Gain on disposal of property and equipment 928,194                    1,548,166                 
Gain on disposal of equity investment -                             68,626                       

Rental income 186,080                    338,191                     

Bad debt recovered 638,697                    2,001,815                 

Other income 6,724,081                 6,121,370                 

12,243,039              12,940,209               

6 Net impairment loss on financial assets Group Group

 9 Months Ended  9 Months Ended 

September September

2014 2013

Collective impairment charges on loans (206,168)                   8,081,207                 

impairment charge on available for sale -                             (132,905)                   

Specific impairment charges on loans and advances (6,274,768)               (378,738)                   

Specific impairment on other assets (478,153)                   1,109,813                 

(6,959,090)               8,679,376                 

7 Personnel expenses Group Group

 9 Months Ended  9 Months Ended 

September September

2014 2013

Wages and salaries 21,300,957               23,596,456               

Contributions to defined contribution plans 433,433                    

21,734,390              23,596,456               

8 Other operating expenses Group Group

 9 Months Ended  9 Months Ended 

September September

2014 2013

AMCON surcharge (see note (a) below) 6,225,000                 8,087,360                 

Deposit insurance premium 4,320,073                 4,391,538                 

General administrative expenses 27,342,411               22,960,272               

Insurance 640,730                    626,663                     

Business travel expenses 2,144,471                 1,746,458                 

Other premises and equipment costs 4,457,214                 5,111,180                 

Professional fees 1,842,540                 1,796,041                 

Operating lease expenses 1,588,995                 1,422,524                 

Loss on disposal of investments -                             406,975                     

48,561,434              46,549,011               



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 September, 2014

In thousands of Naira

(a)

9 Share of profit of equity accounted investee Group

September

2014

Associated Discount House (22%) 416,515                    

Magnate Technology and Associate (40%) (5,406)                       

411,109                    

This represents the Group’s contribution to AMCON’s sinking fund for the period ended 30  September  2014. Effective 1 January 2013, the 

Bank was required to contribute 0.5% of its total assets as at the preceding year end to AMCON's sinking fund in line with the guideline. 



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 September, 2014

In thousands of Naira

10 Cash and cash equivalents

Group Group

September December

2014 2013

Cash and balances with Other banks 106,574,238                        114,541,529    

Money market placements 78,779,355                          121,368,581    

Unrestricted balances with central banks 21,702,102                          31,143,134      

Restricted deposits with central banks 206,881,308                        172,406,297    

413,937,003                        439,459,541    

11 Non pledged trading assets

Group Group

September December

2014 2013

Equities 79,440                                  104,918            

Treasury bills 19,468,276                          2,370,725         

Trading bonds 3,215,111                            1,402,326         

22,762,827                          3,877,969         

12 Pledged assets

Group Group

September December

2014 2013

Treasury bills 4,821,114                            4,774,503         

Government bonds 73,827,510                          58,635,348      

78,648,624                          63,409,851      

(i) All pledged assets are held to maturity government bonds.

(ii)

13 Loans and advances to customers

Group Group

September December

2014 2013

Loans and Advances to customers 1,076,162,491                    800,664,423    

Specific Impairment (13,131,455)                         (7,944,110)       

Collective impairment (6,901,435)                           (6,550,609)       

1,056,129,601                    786,169,703    

14 (a) Investments in equity accounted investee Group Group

September December

2014 2013

Balance, beginning of year 3,623,325                            2,774,647         

Share of Profit for the period 411,109                                1,465,814         

Share of OCI for the period (96)                                         (17,215)             

Dividends received -                                         (96,041)             

Disposal during the period -                                         (503,879)           

4,034,338                            3,623,325         

As at 30 September  2014, the Bank held no collateral, which it was permitted to sell or repledge in the absence of 

default by the owner of the collateral (December 2013: nil).

The assets pledged by the Group are strictly for the purpose of providing collateral to the counterparty for various 

transactions. These transactions include assets pledged in connection with clearing/settlement activities of the Group.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 September, 2014

In thousands of Naira

Percentage holding

Group's share 

of operating 

profit

Associated Discount House 22% 416,515            

Magnate Technology and Associate 40% (5,406)               

Total 411,109            

i. 

ii

iii

iv

14 (b) Subsidiaries Ownership interest

September

Subsidiaries with continuing operations 2014

Access Bank, UK 100%

Access Bank, Ghana 92%

Access Bank Rwanda 75%

Access Bank, Congo 74%

Access Bank, Zambia 92%

Access Bank, Gambia 70%

Access Bank, Sierra Leone 97%

Investment in RSPP scheme 100%

Access Bank Finance B.V. 100%

Subsidiaries undergoing liquidation

Flexmore Technologies Limited

The Group holds an equity interest of 40% in Magnate Technology and Services Limited (MTSL) as at 30 September  2014 (31 December 2013 - 

40%).  

The company was incorporated in February, 2003 with the principal activities being the provision of security and communication services to its 

numerous clients via the use of its ICT platform.

All associates are incorporated in Nigeria except Magnate Technology and Services Limited, which was incorporated in Ghana.

Access Bank Plc does not have any representation on the Board of these companies, nor does it have a right to appoint a director

Access Bank Plc does not participate in the policy-making decisions, nor does it have a right to participate in such policy-making decisions of 

these companies

There are no material transactions between Access Bank Plc and these companies, there is no interchange of personnel between the two 

companies and there is no sharing of technical information between the companiesAccess Bank Plc has deemed these investments as fully impaired and thus has a nil carrying value in their books. 

There were no published price quotations for any associate. There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the associates to transfer 

funds to the group in the form of cash dividends, or repayments of loans or advances. Both associates were accounted for using the equity 

method.

The Group exercises significant influence in Associated Discount House and Magnate Technologies Limited respectively by virtue of its more 

than 20% shareholding in each of the entities and the representation of at least one director on the board of the companies and significant 

participation in the companies' operating and financial policies.

There are SME investments of N3.2billion of which the Bank has shareholdings of more than 20% but less than 50%. These investments were 

classified as available for sale rather than as investment in associates or subsidiaries because the company does not have the power to 

excercise any influence or control over the entity. The Company's determination that it does not have any influence over these entities through 

it's shareholding has been based on the following factors in particular:



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 September, 2014

In thousands of Naira

15 Investment Securities

Group Group

September December

2014 2013

Available for sale investment 151,662,007                  193,005,844                  

Held to maturity investment 129,741,220                  163,951,202                  

Specific impairment for unquoted equity securities (3,145,697)                     (3,145,698)                     

278,257,529                  353,811,348                  

16 Investment properties

Group Group

September December

2014 2013

Balance, beginning of year 23,974,789                         14,360,567                         

Reclassified (22,688,483)                        5,159,830                            

On disposal of subsidiary -                                        (287,894)                              

Fair value gain/(loss) -                                        4,850,286                            

Disposals during the period (1,286,306)                          (108,000)                              

-                                        23,974,789                         

Allowances for impairment -                                        -                                        

Balance, end of period -                                        23,974,789                         

17 Property and equipment Group Group

Group September December

2014 2013

Property and equipment- cost 108,126,045                  104,784,436                  

Accumulated depreciation (40,038,729)                   (37,541,133)                   

68,087,316                    67,243,305                    

18 Intangible assets Group Group

Group September December

2014 2013

a Goodwill 681,007                          681,007                          

b Cost- Purchased software 8,239,028                      7,297,795                      

Accum. Amortization (4,707,897)                     (4,319,731)                     

Total 4,212,138                      3,659,071                      

These Investment properties have been valued by reputable estate surveyors and valuers using the comparable transactions method of 

valuation to arrive at the open market value. There is no rental income from investment property during the period and no restrcitions on 

the reaslisability of the property. The properties are held for capital appreciation. These have now been reclassified as non current assets 

held for sale



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 September, 2014

In thousands of Naira

19 Other Assets Group Group

September December

2014 2013

Accounts receivable 65,776,156                    43,158,075                    

Cash collateral receivable on letters of credit transactions 16,920,213                    16,330,068                    

Receivable from AMCON (see note (a) below) 5,498,909                      5,780,565                      

Prepayments 22,204,063                    8,381,805                      

Subscription for investment 430,403                          925,030                          

Allowance for impairment on other assets (22,074,785)                   (22,555,820)                   

88,754,958                    52,019,723                    

(a)

Non-current assets held for sale

Group Group

September December

2014 2013

Opening -                                  -                                  

Reclassification 22,688,483                    -                                  

Closing 22,688,483                    -                                  

Group Group

June December

2014 2013

20 Due to other banks

Money market deposits -                                  17,953,459                    

Other deposits from banks 115,766,604                  54,194,496                    

Total 115,766,604                  72,147,955                    

21 Deposit from customers

Group Group

September December

2014 2013

Demand 769,459,961                  711,561,291                  

Savings 117,382,323                  118,211,706                  

Term and Call 592,177,930                  501,645,662                  

Total 1,479,020,215              1,331,418,659              

22 Debt securities issued

Group Group

September December

2014 2013

Debt securities at amortized cost:

Eurobond debt security (see Note (a) below) 123,164,293                  55,828,248                    

123,164,293                  55,828,248                    

This balance represents a receivable from Asset Management Corporation of Nigeria (AMCON) in connection with the acquisition of Intercontinental Bank in 

line with the Transaction Implementation Agreement (TIA) executed on 6 July 2011 and entered with the Bank. The receivable is expected to be settled via 

consideration such as cash or bonds issued by AMCON.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 September, 2014

In thousands of Naira

(a)

23 Retirement benefits obligations

Group Group

September December

2014 2013

                            1,215,535                             1,929,695 

Liability for defined contribution obligations -                                        3,326                                    

1,215,535                           1,933,021                           

(a) Defined benefit obligations

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Group Group

September December

2014 2013

Long term incentive plan  (see note (i) below) 1,215,535                            1,929,695                            

Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 1,215,535                           1,929,695                           

(i) Long term incentive plan

Group Group

September December

2014 2013

24 Current tax liabilities

Current Tax Liabilities 9,292,603                      6,899,558                      

9,292,603                      6,899,558                      

Group Group

September December

2014 2013

25 Other Liabilities

Certified cheques 3,478,838                      3,250,467                      

Collections 4,726,981                      17,698,448                    

Creditors and accruals 3,281,142                      3,857,265                      

Customer deposits for foreign trade 8,238,079                      20,968,920                    

Litigation claims provision 177,087                          477,087                          

Other Current Liabilities 8,119,488                      10,595,029                    

Total 28,021,616                    56,847,216                    

The Bank operates a non-contributory, unfunded lump sum defined benefit long term incentive plan for top executive management of the Bank from

General Manager and above based on the number of years spent in these positions. The scheme is also aimed at rewarding executive directors and other

senior executives for the contributions to achieving the Bank's long-term growth objectives.

Depending on their grade, executive staff of the Bank upon retirement are entitled to certain benefits based on their length of stay on that grade.

Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations (see note (a) below)

The amount of N 123,164,293,000 (USD750,000,000) represents the net of balances held by Group entities in respect to dollar guaranteed notes issued by

Access Finance B.V.(350,000,000), Netherlands, which is due in 2017 and Bonds issued directly by the Bank(USD 400,000,000) which is due in 2021.

The net proceeds from the issue of the Notes, was used by the Issuer for the sole purpose of providing a loan to Access Bank, which was in turn be used by

the Bank to support its existing trade finance business, serve as a source of long term foreign currency funding and could be used to support the business of

its customers, especially those active in the Nigerian oil and gas and power sector. 

Access Bank in the Trust Deed, unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed the due and punctual payment of all sums by the Issuer (Access Finance B.V.) in

respect of the Notes.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the period ended 30 September, 2014

In thousands of Naira

26 Interest bearing loans and borrowings Group Group

September December

2014 2013

On-lending 52,823,916                    64,338,982                    

Loan from Access Finance BV -                                  -                                  

52,823,916                    64,338,982                    

27 Equity Group Group

September December

2014 2013

Share Capital 11,441,460                    11,441,460                    

Share Premium (a) 161,036,211                  161,036,211                  

172,477,671                  172,477,671                  

28 Retained earnings Group Group

September December

2014 2013

Balance as at June 2014 42,759,286                    22,232,375                    

29 Other components of equity Group Group

September December

2014 2013

Capital Reserve 3,489,081                      3,489,080                      

Fair Value Reserves 6,595,176                      6,237,939                      

Other Regulatory Reserves 30,337,646                    30,365,409                    

Other Reserves 12,375,077                    12,726,951                    

Translation reserve (6,338,215)                     (4,815,485)                     

46,458,765                    48,003,894                    



Access Bank Plc.

Unaudited IFRS  Interim Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the period ended 30 September, 2014

Accounting policies

Related party transactions

The Bank’s gross exposure to insiders as at September 30, 2014 is N3.7 bn. All transactions are done at market rate 
and are at arm's length.

Seasonality of operations

No cyclical or occasional revenues have been recongised in preparing this interim financial statements

Changes in estimates

The measurement procedures adopted are consistent with that of the annual financial statements

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted by the group

(a) Amendments to IFRS 7 on offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (2011)

(i) IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
IFRS 10 replaces all of the consolidation guidance of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and SIC 12 Consolidation –

Special Purpose Entities. The new standard changes the definition of control such that it can only be present when there is (i) power, (ii)

exposure to variability in returns and (iii) ability to use the power to affect returns. Consolidation will only be required when all the three

criteria are met. IFRS 10 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The amendments have been applied

retrospectively, the Group does not have any entity which would result to a loss of controls or an existence of a control relationship based

on the requirement of the new standard. The application of the amendments had no material impact on the disclosures or the amount

recognised in the consolidated financial statements. 

(b) New and revised standards - IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statement, IFRS 11 - Joint arrangements, IAS 27 - Separate 

financial statement, IAS 28 - Investment in Associates and IFRS 12 - Disclosures of Interest in Other Entities
Early adoption of IFRS 10, 11 and 12 is permitted but is required to take place simultaneously. Only IFRS 12 can be early adopted without 

IFRS 10 and 11. None of these standards were early adopted by the Group.

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 (revised) together with the amendments to

IFRS 10, 11 and 12 regarding the transition gudiance. IAS 27 (revised) is also applicable to the entity since a consolidated and separate

financial statements are being presented. 

Same accounting policies as stated in the annual accounts have been adopted in preparing this interim financial report

The Group’s key management personnel, and persons connected with them, are also considered to be related parties. The definition of key 

management includes the close members of family of key personnel and any entity over which key management exercise control. The key 

management personnel have been identified as the executive and non-executive directors of the Group. Close members of family are those 

family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that individual in their dealings with Access Bank Plc and its 

subsidiaries.

Below are the IFRSs and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commitee (IFRIC) interpretations that are effective for the first 

time for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2013 that would be expected to have an impact on the group

Disclosures- Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (amendments to IFRS 7) introduces disclosures about the impact of right of

offsets and related arrangements for financial instruments under a master netting or similar arrangements. The amendments are effective

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods within those annual periods. The amendments are applied

restrospectively, the Group does not have offsetting arrangements in place as at September 2014. The application of the amendments had

no material impact on the disclosures or the amount recognised in the consolidated financial statements. 



IAS 1 addresses changes in the presentation of other comprehensive income. The amended standard retains the option to present either a

single statement or as two separate statements. The amendments also includes new terminologies whose use is not mandatory. Under IAS

1 amended, the statement of comprehensive income is renamed as the statement of profit or loss account and other comprehensive

income and the income statement is renamed as the statement of profit and loss. The Group continues to adopt the single statement

approach. 

The amendments to IAS 1 also require items of other comprehensive income be grouped into two categories (a) Items that may be

subsequently reclassified in the profit and loss account when specific conditions are met (b) Items that will not be subsequently reclassified

to profit and loss account. Income tax on items in other comprehensive income should also be allocated in the same manner. The

amendment did not remove the option to report the items in other comprehensive income before or net of tax. This standard is applicable

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The application of IAS 1 (amended) has resulted in split of other comprehensive

income into items that may be subsequently reclassified and items that will not.

IFRS 13 requires prospective application from 1 January 2013, specific transition provision was also granted to entities such that they need

not apply the disclosure requirements set out in the standard in comparative information provided for periods before the application of

this standard. IFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with early adoption permitted. In accordance

with the transition provisions, the Group has not made any new disclosures required for comparative periods.

(d) IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

(c) IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 

IFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how fair value is measured and disclosed, and replaces the fair value measurement

guidance that is currently dispersed throughout IFRS. Subject to limited exceptions, IFRS 13 is applied when fair value measurements or

disclosures are required or permitted by other IFRSs, this is applicable to both financial and non financial instruments. The exceptions

include leasing transactions within the scope of IAS 17 - Leases, IFRS 2 - Share based payments and some measurements with similarities to

fair value but are not fair value e.g value in use for impairment assessment purpose or net realisable value for measuring inventories.

Although many of the IFRS 13 disclosure requirements regarding financial assets and financial liabilities are already required, the adoption

of IFRS 13 will require the Group to provide additional disclosures. These include fair value hierarchy disclosures for non-financial

assets/liabilities and disclosures on fair value measurements that are categorised in Level 3.

(v) AS 28 (revised 2011) – Associates and joint ventures
This standard includes the requirements for joint ventures, as well as associates, to be equity accounted following the issue of IFRS 11.  The 

revision hs no impact on the Group. 

(iv) IAS 27 (revised 2011) – Separate financial statements
This standard includes the provisions on separate financial statements that are left after the control provisions of IAS 27 have been

included in the new IFRS 10. The financial statement includes information relating to the stand alone parent and all relevant disclosures

included. 

(iii) IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
IFRS 12 includes all of the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associated entities, structured entities and other 

balance sheet vehicles. Changes include the requirement to disclose the judgements made to determine whether it controls another entity 

and other more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. IFRS 12 is effective in annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2013. The application of IFRS 12 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements

(ii) IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
IFRS 11 overhauls the accounting for joint ventures and replaces IAS 31 Interest in Joint Ventures and SIC 13 Jointly Controlled Entities -

Non Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It uses the principles of control in IFRS 10 in defining joint control and whether joint control

exists may change. Under IFRS 11, there are only two types of joint arrangements (i) Joint operations (ii) Joint ventures. The new standard

does not allow proportional consolidation of joint ventures and the equity method must be applied. IFRS 11 is effective in annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The amendments have been applied retrospectively, the Group does not have any joint arrangement

relationship. The application of the amendments had no material impact on the disclosures or the amount recognised in the consolidated

financial statements. 



c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns 

The investor shall reassess whether it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the

three elements of control listed. The existence and effect of potential voting rights are considered when assessing whether the group

controls another entity.

a) power over the investee;

b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Amendments to IAS 36 - Impairment of assets (effective 1 January 2014)

These amendments address the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair

value less costs of disposal. These amendments address the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if

that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal. to require disclosure of the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU when an

impairment loss has been recognised or reversed; and to require detailed disclosure of how the fair value less costs of disposal has been

measured when an impairment loss has been recognised or reversed. 

Amendments to IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Presentation (effective 1 January 2014)

The IASB has issued amendments to the application guidance in IAS 32, ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’, that clarify some of the

requirements for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities on the balance sheet. However, the clarified offsetting requirements for

amounts presented in the statement of financial position continue to be different from Generally Accepted Accounting practices in the

United States of America)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement (effective 1 January 2015)

IFRS 9 (2009) introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 (2010) introduces additions

relating to financial liabilities. The IASB currently has an active project to make limited amendments to the classification and measurement

requirements of IFRS 9 and add new requirements to address the impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. 

The IFRS 9 (2009) requirements represents a significant change from the existing requirements in IAS 39 in respect of financial assets. The 

New and amended standards and interpretations not yet adopted by the Group

A number of standards and interpretations, and amendments thereto, had been issued by the IASB which are not yet effective for these

consolidated financial statements. None of these standards is expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statement

of the group, except the following set out below. 

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group exercise control. Control is achieved when the Group can

demonstrate it has:

(f) IAS 32 (amended) Financial instruments: Presentation

The amendment clarifies the treatment of income tax relating to distributions and transaction costs. The amendment clarifies that the

treatment is in accordance with IAS 12. So, income tax related to distributions is recognised in the income statement, and income tax

related to the costs of equity transactions is recognised in equity. The amended IAS 32 is effective for periods beginning on or after 1

January 2013. The amendments have been applied restrospectively. The application of the amendments had no material impact on the

disclosures or the amount recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

 -  Net interest costs (i.e. net interest on the net defined benefit liability) – income statement;

 -  Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability/asset – in other comprehensive income.

The amended IAS 19 is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The amendments have been applied restrospectively,

therefore actuarial gains or losses previously recognised in income staement tshould be reclassed to other comprehensive income. The

application of the amendments will impact the Group's previous treatment of recognising actuarial gains and losses in income statement.

(e) IAS 19 Employee benefits

The amended IAS 19 states that changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets are recognised in the period as they

occur. The “corridor“ method is eliminated and actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service costs are recognised directly in

other comprehensive income. Because actuarial gains and losses are no longer deferred, affecting both the net defined benefit

liability/asset and the amounts recognised in income statement are affected.The amended standard splits changes in defined benefit 

 -  Service cost (including past Service costs, curtailments and settlements) – in income statement



 -   the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

(iii)  Acquisitions from entities under common control

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholder that controls the group

are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative year presented or, if later, at the date that

common control was established; for this purpose comparatives are restated. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at the

carrying amounts recognised previously in the Group controlling shareholder’s consolidated financial statements. The components of

equity of the acquired entities are added to the same components within Group equity and any gain/loss arising is recognised directly in

equity.

The Group elects on a transaction-by-transaction basis whether to measure non-controlling interest at its fair value, or at its proportionate 

share of the recognised amount of the identifiable net assets, at the acquisition date.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is classified as

equity, then it is not re-measured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the

contingent consideration are recognised in the income statement.

When share-based payment awards (replacement awards) are required to be exchanged for awards held by the acquiree’s employees

(acquiree’s awards) and relate to past services , then all or a portion of the amount of the acquirer’s replacement awards is included in

measuring the consideration transferred in the business combination. This determination is based on the market-based value of the

replacement awards compared with the market-based value of the acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the replacement awards

relate to past and/or future service.

Transactions costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs 

in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

The group assesses existence of control where it does not have more than 50% of the voting power i.e when it holds less than a majority

of the voting rights of an investee. An investor considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not it's voting rights

are sufficient to give it power, including:

a) a contractual arrangement between the investor and other vote holders 

b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is the date on which control is

transferred to the Group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its

activities. In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights. No business combinations occurred during the

period under review 

(ii) Business combinations

The Group applies IFRS 3 Business Combinations (revised) in accounting for business combinations. 

c) the investor’s voting rights (including voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings)

d) potential voting rights

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as the total of:

 -   the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

 -   the recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair 

value of the pre-existing equity interest in the acquiree; less

When this total is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in statement of comprehensive income,after a re-

assessment to ensure correctness. The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing 

relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in in the income statement.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are de-consolidated from the date that 

control ceases.  Subsidiaries are measured at cost less impairment in the separate financial statement. 



Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits and losses

resulting from intercompany transactions that are recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been

changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

(vi) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of

between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the

equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s

share of the profit/loss and other comprehensive income of the investee after the date of acquisition. The group’s investment in associates

includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

(v) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions – that is, as

transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant

share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling

interests are also recorded in equity. 

(iv) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the group ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost,

with the change in carrying amount recognised in income statement. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of

subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously

recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed of the related

assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income

statement.

The gain/loss arising from disposal of subsidiaries is included in the profit/loss of discontinued operations in the statement of 

Investments in associates are measured at cost less impairment in the separate financial statement. 

(viii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

The group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If

this is the case, the group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its

carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss) of associates in the income statement

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the group and its associate are recognised in the group’s

financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the

transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts

previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to the income statement where appropriate.

The group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in

other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the

investment. When the group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured

receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of the associate.

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other

components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in the income statement. If

the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost.

Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or in accordance with the Group's accounting policy for financial

instruments.

(vi) Loss of control



FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(i) Credit risk measurement

(ii)   Foreign exchange risk

The Bank’s foreign exchange risk is considered at a Group level since an effective overview of such risk is a critical element of the Bank’s

asset/liability risk management. The Board of Directors defines its risk tolerance levels and expectations for foreign exchange risk

management and ensures that the risk is maintained at prudent levels. 

Foreign exchange risk is quantified using the net balance of assets and liabilities in each currency, and their total sum. The assets and liabilities

include current positions, forward positions, commitments, and the market value of derivatives in foreign currency. 

Our net total currency balance is always within specified regulatory limits which is currently 1% of shareholders’ funds. 

The credit rating of the counterparty plays a fundamental role in final credit decisions as well as in the terms offered for successful loan

applications. Access Bank employs a robust credit rating system based on international best practices (including Basel II recommendations) in

the determination of the Obligor and Facility risks and thus allows the Bank to maintain its asset quality at a desired level.

In Access Bank, the objective of the Risk Rating Policy is to ensure reliable and consistent Obligor Risk Ratings (‘ORRs’) and Facility Risk Ratings

(‘FRRs’) throughout the Bank and to provide guidelines for risk rating for retail and non – retail exposures in the Bank.

The Risk rating policy incorporates credit risk rating models which estimate risk of obligor default and facility risks (covering both recovery as

well as Exposure risk). These models are currently based on expert judgment for Retail and Non-Retail Exposures. Our long-term goal is to

adopt the Internal Rating Based (“IRB”) approach. The data required to facilitate the IRB approach are being gathered. All Access Bank

businesses that extend credit are subject to the Risk rating policy.

Foreign Exchange risk is the exposure of the Bank’s financial condition to adverse movements in exchange rates. The Bank is exposed to

foreign exchange risk primarily through its assets, managing customers’ deposits and through acting as an intermediary in foreign exchange

transactions between central and commercial banks. 
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(iii) Market risk management

Market risk policy, management and control

Access Bank’s ability to meet business objectives will be adversely affected by changes in the level or volatility of market rates or prices such

as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices, commodity prices and credit spreads. Market risk mainly arises from trading activities 

and equity investments. Access Bank is also exposed to market risk through non-traded interest rate risk in its banking book:

The Bank’s ability to effectively identify, assess, monitor and manage market risks involved in its activities is critical to its soundness and

profitability. It’s strategy is to invest its own capital on a limited and carefully selected basis in transactions, underwritings and other

activities that involve market risk. The Bank is exposed to market risk through adverse movements in equity prices, foreign exchange and

interest rates.

The Bank’s GMD/CEO is responsible for approving specific position limits, which are used for positions, which are sometimes specific

medium-term investment cases and other times strategic (or have the potential of becoming strategic) in the medium term. 

Each trading unit within the Bank adheres to the general rules set out by the Board of Directors. Moreover, each trading unit has its own set

of working procedures and rules that further specify their targets, limits and scope in trading.

The position limits, or any changes to them, are proposed by the Bank’s head of trading and then accepted by the Bank’s Chief Risk Officer

and reviewed by the Bank’s CEO. The size of each position limit is based on, among other factors, underlying liquidity, the Bank’s risk

appetite, as well as legal limitations on individual positions imposed by authorities in Nigeria. 

All market risks are reported to the Risk Committee daily (through a dashBoard) and quarterly with recommendations made concerning the

risk profile including risk appetite, limits and utilization. The head of each business, assisted by the business risk management team, is

accountable for all market risks associated with its activities, which are reported to business risk governance and control committees.

Oversight and support is provided to the business by the central market risk team.

Access Bank has a dedicated market risk team with the sole responsibility of implementing the market risk control framework. Daily market

risk and stress testing reports are produced for trading portfolios covering all risk categories including interest rate, equity and foreign

exchange credit spread risk.  

Risk of losses arising from future potential adverse movements in market rates, prices and volatilities are measured using a VaR

methodology. VaR, in general, is a quantitative measure of market risk that applies recent historic market conditions to estimate the

potential future loss in market value that will not be exceeded in a set time period at a set statistical confidence level.



Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

VaR provides a consistent measure that can be applied across trading businesses and products over time and can be set against actual daily

trading profit and loss outcome. To assess their predictive power, Value-at-risk estimates the potential maximum decline in the value of a

position or portfolio, under normal market conditions, over a one-day holding period, at 99% confidence level. The Access Bank value-at-

risk method incorporates the factor sensitivities of the trading portfolio, the volatilities and correlations of the market risk factors. The group

uses the variance covariance method which derives likely future changes in market value from historical market volatility. Value at risks is

estimated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of business and therefore might not factor in the intra-day exposures.

However, the bank does not only based its risk estimates on Value at Risk, it uses sensitivity and what-if analysis to further complement it.

The trading book is made up of foreign currency, Bonds and Treasury bills instruments.                                                                                                                                                                                            

Sensitivity measures are used in addition to VaR as risk management tools. For example, interest rate sensitivity is measured in terms of

exposure to a one basis point increase in yields, whereas foreign exchange, commodity and equity sensitivities are measured in terms of the

underlying values or amounts involved. 

Identifying the growing importance of market risks in the Bank's operations, management has continued to ensure adequate internal 

controls and capital resources to address these risks. Prominent among the steps taken by management is the documentation of Internal 

Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP), for effective risk and capital management, and approving more stringent limits to ensure 

market risk exposures are within its appetite. 

The management of interest rate risk against interest rate gap limits is supplemented with monitoring the sensitivity of the Group’s financial

assets and liabilities to various scenarios.

Interest rate movement have both cash flow and fair value effect depending on whether interest rate is fixed or floating. The impact

resulting from adverse or favourable movement flows from either retained earnings or OCI and ultimately ends in equity in the following

manner:

The group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the group to cash flow interest

rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at variable rates. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the group to fair value interest rate

risk.

At 30 June, 2014, the group’s interest rate risk arises principally from risk asset and borrowings (deposit liabilities and long-term

borrowings). Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the group to cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at

variable rates. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the group to fair value interest rate risk.

(i) Retained earnings arising from increase or decrease in net interest income and the fair value changes reported in profit or loss.

(ii) Fair value reserves arising from increases or decreases in fair value of available-for-sale financial

instruments reported directly in other comprehensive income.
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(v) Reputational risk management

f) Ensure that only fit and proper persons are appointed to senior management positions in the Bank.

(iv) Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk arises when the Bank is unable to meet expected or unexpected current or future cash flows and collateral

needs without affecting its daily operations or its financial condition. The Bank is managed to preserve a high degree of

liquidity so that it can meet the requirements of its customers at all times including periods of financial stress. 

The Bank has developed a liquidity management framework based on a statistical model underpinned by conservative

assumptions with regard to cash inflows and the liquidity of liabilities. In addition, liquidity stress tests assuming extreme

withdrawal scenarios are performed. These stress tests specify additional liquidity requirements to be met by holdings of

liquid assets. 

The Bank’s liquidity has consistently been above the minimum liquidity ratio and the requirements of its stress tests. Global

funding and liquidity risk management activities are centralized within Corporate Treasury. We believe that a centralized

approach to funding and liquidity risk management enhances our ability to monitor liquidity requirements, maximizes access

to funding sources, minimizes borrowing costs and facilitates timely responses to liquidity events. We analyze and monitor

our liquidity risk, maintain excess liquidity and access diverse funding sources including our stable deposit base. 

The Board approves the Bank’s liquidity policy and contingency funding plan, including establishing liquidity risk tolerance

levels. The Group ALCO, in conjunction with the Board and its committees, monitors our liquidity position and reviews the

impact of strategic decisions on our liquidity. Liquidity positions are measured by calculating the Bank’s net liquidity gap and

by comparing selected ratios with targets as specified in the liquidity risk management manual.

For more information on the Bank's risk management framework, refer to the June 2014 Audited Financial Statements

a) Set an appropriate tone and guidelines regarding the development and implementation of effective reputation risk 

management practices, including an explicit statement of a zero tolerance policy for all unethical behaviour;

b) Approve the Bank’s framework for the identification, measurement, control and management of reputational risk.

c) Monitor the Bank’s compliance with its reputational risk management policies and recommend sanctions for material 

breaches of internal policies.

d) Review all exception reports by external parties such as regulators and auditors; ensure that appropriate sanctions are 

applied to erring officers; demand from management appropriate explanations for all exceptional items; ensure that 

management puts in place effective and remedial actions and reports on progress to the Board on an ongoing basis;

e) Ensure that Board members do not compromise their fit and proper status with regulators. They shall ensure that only 


